
Posted by Jack Hendrix, Dev. Dir.,       July 9, 2021  2:00 p.m.  Accommodations Upon Request 
107 W. Main St., Smithville, MO  64089 

Planning and Zoning Commission Meeting 

July 13, 2021 

7:00 p.m. – City Hall and Via Videoconference 

Anyone who wishes to view the meeting in real time may do so as it will be streamed live 
on the city’s YouTube page through YouTube Live.   

1. Call to Order

2. Approve the June 8, 2021 Planning Commission Minutes

3. Staff Report

4. Kozak’s Laketown Grill Site Plan

Stonebridge Ln. Talley Plaza lots 1-3 

5. Continuation - Herzog Foundation Site Plan - Cabins

6. Adjourn



SMITHVILLE PLANNING COMMISSION 
 

REGULAR SESSION 
June 8, 2021 

7:00 P.M. 
Council Chambers 

 
 
Due to the COVID-19 pandemic this meeting was held via the Zoom 
meeting app. City staff were at City Hall for the meeting.   
 
Planning and Zoning Commission members attended via the Zoom meeting 
app.  The meeting was streamed live on the city’s YouTube page through 
YouTube Live.   
 
 
Those attending the meeting: Deb Dotson, Alderman John Chevalier, 
Carmen Xavier, Mayor Damien Boley, Chairman Rand Smith, and 
Development Director Jack Hendrix. Dennis Kathcart and Connor Samenus 
were absent. 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
Chairman Rand Smith called the meeting to order at 7:11 p.m. 

  
2. MINUTES 
 The May 11, 2021, Meeting Minutes were moved for approval by DOTSON, 

Seconded by ALDERMAN CHEVALIER. 
 

      Ayes 5, Noes 0. Motion carried.  
  
 
3. STAFF REPORT 
 
 HENDRIX reported: 
 
 Items 8, 9, 10 & 11 on the agenda were pulled by the applicant this 

afternoon. The was no specific date or time as to when they will be put back 
on a future agenda.  

 
 We just received notice that the building code enforcement group that 

surveyed us to see how well we enforced our building codes for purpose of 



the ISO rating for insurance has completed their audit and notified us of our 
new ratings. Our previous ratings were a 5 for both residential and 
commercial. Our new ratings are a building code rating of 5 for residential 
and now a 4 on the commercial side. A 1 is as good as it gets and goes up 
to an 8. There is also a rating of 99 which basically means you are unrated. 
Hendrix stated that when he started working for the city in 2007 we were 
still unrated. After the first evaluation in 2007 or 2008 we went to a 7.  

 
 We have issued 28 single family homes since January 1, 2021.  
 

 
4. PUBLIC HEARING (FOUR SEPARATE PUBLIC HEARINGS): 

• SINGLE PHASE FINAL PLAT – MITCHELL’S GREENHOUSE & 
NURSERY PLAT 2, A REPLAT OF LOT 1 TO CREATE 2 NEW LOTS (3 
TOTAL) 

 
  
 Public Hearing: None 
 
 Public Hearing closed 
 
 
5. MITCHELL’S GREENHOUSE & NURSERY 2ND PLAT – 13500 N 169 

HWY  
 
 HENDRIX stated that this is a request to divide the Mitchell’s Greenhouse 

subdivision that was created 2 years ago with 2 lots and a conceptual plan 
overlay on it so that they would be able to have a commercial subdivision 
with lots on it without all of them having direct front access to a public 
street. They have one access that comes in and a cross access agreement 
with Fill Features. On lot one you have BesaMe Wellness which is the 
medical marijuana dispensary. Now they want to start the work on the Attic 
Storage buildings, and they need to separate the lot from the medical 
marijuana facility. There will also be a third lot for future development.  

 
XAVIER motioned to approve the Mitchell’s Greenhouse & Nursey 2nd Plat. 
Seconded by Dotson.  
 
DISCUSSION: None 
 



THE VOTE: DOTSON-AYE, MAYOR BOLEY-AYE, ALDERMAN CHEVALIER-
AYE, XAVIER-AYE, SMITH-AYE.  
 
AYES-5, NOES-0. MOTION PASSED 

 
 
6. PUBLIC HEARING:  

• SINGLE PHASE FINAL PLAT: KYLEE ACRES FINAL PLAT TO 
CREATE AN ADDITIONAL LOT (2 LOTS) 

 
HENDRIX stated that the applicant wants to split 10 acres off the front of his 
property. Unfortunately, the applicant did not fulfill our request for 
additional information that needed taken care of before this meeting and he 
intended to pull this from the agenda but didn’t. He suggested that we go 
ahead and open the public hearing to see if we have any public comment. 
We won’t move forward with the actual motion or vote until they comply 
with our request.  

 
 Public Hearing: None  
 
 Public Hearing closed 
 
 
7. KYLEE ACRES FINAL PLAT – 2000 NE 132ND 
 
 As previously explained by Mr. Hendrix, this item has been pulled from this 

agenda until applicant can provide the needed information as requested by 
city staff.  

 
8. PUBLIC HEARING: 

• REZONING 18420 EAGLE PARKWAY FROM R-1P AND R-2P WITH 
A CONCEPTUAL PLAN TO R-1D SINGLE FAMILY SMALL LOT 

 
As previously explained by Mr. Hendrix, this item has been pulled from this 
agenda by the applicant.  

 
9. REZONING 18420 EAGLE PARKWAY TO R-1D SINGLE FAMILY 

SMALL LOT 
 

 As previously explained by Mr. Hendrix, this item has been pulled 
from this agenda by the applicant.  



10.   PUBLIC HEARING: 
• PRELIMINARY PLAT – LAKESIDE FARMS (FORMERLY EAGLE 

HEIGHTS) SUBDIVISION TO CREAT 261 SINGLE FAMILY LOTS 
 
As previously explained by Mr. Hendrix, this item has been pulled from this 
agenda by the applicant.  
 

 
11.   PRELIMINARY PLAT APPROVAL – LAKESIDE FARMS (FORMERLY 

EAGLE HEIGHTS) TO CREATE 261 SINGLE FAMILY LOTS 
 

As previously explained by Mr. Hendrix, this item has been pulled from this 
agenda by the applicant.  

 
 
12.  MEDICAL MARIJUANA FACILITY SITE PLAN REVIEW 
 
 HENDRIX stated that each commission member received a staff report on   

this agenda item. Due to the size of the building, there are two areas in the 
design standard requirements where the applicants requested a slight 
variance.  

 
The first variance proposal was that they wanted to reduce the pitch of the 
roof to a 2/12 pitch instead of a 3/12 pitch. The sheer size of the building 
makes that height unnecessarily expensive to construct when wind loads are 
taken into account. Staff recommends that you consider that variance.  
 
The second variance proposal type and amount of buffering around the 
HVAC units required. Our standards require exterior ground mounted 
equipment be screened from view with a solid wall. Staff recommends that 
we consider allowing this buffering to be present along the side of the units 
that is visible from the street, and not the full length of the building. 
 
In all other aspects, the application meets our engineers concerns on the 
storm water designs and all of the buffering as it relates to the public 
infrastructure. Staff’s recommendation is that this does meet the standards 
with the 2 items we recommend you change. 
 
DOTSON had a question about their landscape plan. She asked if it is 
possible for this commission to request that they not plant invasive species? 
Missouri Department of Conservation is spending a lot of money mitigating 



the damage that the invasives have done. It’s out of control right now and 
don’t think that we need to add to it. 
 
HENDRIX stated yes. That is already part of our code, and their landscape 
plan meets that code.  
 
Tyler Anderson---Olsson & Associates---Stated that they are they civil 
engineer on this project as well as representing the landscape architect. We 
have supplied a landscape plan with our submittal, and it will be stamped by 
a licensed landscape architect. We definitely stay away trees that will be 
harmful to the area and invasive species. In regard to the screening and the 
HVAC requirement, we made a large attempt to screen from the public view 
of the street with that landscaping between grading on the site as well as 
where we spaced the landscaping. The front portion of the building is used 
for offices so the large HVAC units will not begin until you get to the rear 
half of the building. To the north you have the storm water detention tract 
and to the south is the rear portion of that larger lot as well as unplatted 
area.  
 
ALDERMAN CHEVALIER motioned to approve the medical marijuana site 
plan with staff’s recommendations. Seconded by XAVIER.  
 
DISCUSSION: None 
 
THE VOTE: MAYOR BOLEY-AYE, DOTSON-AYE, SMITH-AYE, XAVIER-AYE, 
ALDERMAN CHEVALIER-AYE.  
 
AYES-5, NOES-0. MOTION PASSED 
 

 
13.  KCI RV STORAGE SITE PLAN AMENDMENT 
 
  HENDRIX stated that this project was previously approved 3 years ago for 

the KCI RV Center with a total of 6 storage buildings. On the south side of 
the property two of the buildings are already built and the third building is 
currently under construction. The north side of the property was approved 
for 3 more buildings with a site plan recommendation that when they build 
these 3 buildings they would have to extend Commercial Street to the end 
of their property and that would become the new entrance. With this site 
plan amendment, they are requesting to remove one of those buildings off 
of the front 169 Hwy side and convert that building to a future office 



building related to the site. It would have the ability to have a restroom, 
shower and the offices for the rest of the change which would be a RV 
camping area. There will be 25 spots on the south side which would be full 
hookup (water, sewer, electric, etc.). There will be buffering in place with 
landscaping. The same will be done on the north side in the future with 23 
spaces and a 3,000 square foot office building will be put in which will have 
to meet the same aesthetic look as everything other building there. They 
understand that if they want to make a change to the look of the building 
they will have to come back for approval. The other item is an open storage 
area that is on the back far west side of the lot. This will be a gravel parking 
area for storing RV’s outside. This is already allowed in the zoning district 
same with the camping so there is no zoning issue, but the only requirement 
is if you have outdoor storage of these RV’s you must have 80% sight 
obscured buffering around it. Everything they have submitted meets the 
application standards.  

 
XAVIER motioned to approve the KCI RV Storage site plan amendment. 
Seconded by DOTSON.  
 
DISCUSSION:  
 
MAYOR BOLEY stated that when we first approved there was a lot of 
concerns about traffic. Now we are talking about short term RV rentals and 
pad rentals instead of bringing them in for storage. Does this need to be 
reevaluated now? 
 
HENDRIX stated that the traffic evaluation that was done by MODOT 
originally addressed all of those things. I think it would be best to have the 
owner talk about how he intends to use that area from the standpoint of if 
it’s rental or something different.  
 

 Steve Kerwin---Owner---Stated that as of now there will be 25 camping 
spaces to the south of the driveway. They will be for the public by 
reservation only.  

 
 DOTSON asked if there will be a time limit for these reservations? One 

week, 2 weeks, month? 
 
 MR. KERWIN stated one month and will not have a place where people can 

live there year round. He wants to make it a nice facility like the one by 
Worlds of Fun.  



 Alderman Chevalier asked how he would regulate this to make sure it 
wouldn’t be a long term rental? 

 
 MR. KERWIN stated that you don’t let them put skirting around a camper. 

They need to be ready to move out quickly. I won’t let anyone homestead 
there.  

 
 SMITH stated that the camping facility by Worlds of Fun has landscaping 

that is beautiful, will yours be like this? 
 
 MR. KERWIN stated absolutely. He wants to have green giants which is a 

tree that grows really fast so that you won’t even be able to see the 
campers in a few years from the highway.  

 
 MAYOR BOLEY stated that his concerns were more about the traffic aspect 

of this. There were a lot of concerns from the public when we approved this 
about the traffic off of 169 Hwy going into that single entrance. I would 
prefer to see this when Commercial St was done.  

 
 HENDRIX stated that his recollection from the MODOT approval several 

years ago anticipated RV traffic going in and coming out of up to 6 buildings 
with all of the storage we are talking about. Taking out one of these 6 
buildings and putting in the camping area I think is within the same realm of 
what they are talking about.  

 
 MAYOR BOLEY asked how many campers does one building hold?  
 
 MR. KERWIN stated that there are 70 bays currently with the 2 completed 

buildings combined. When the third building is complete there will be 101 
bays total. 

 
 MAYOR BOLEY stated there are roughly 35 bays per building. So, by 

removing 1 building you are taking out 35 bays and replacing it with 25 
camping spots. I see the traffic at the lake on the weekends and it’s 
different than storing them.  

 
 XAVIER stated that she thought that she heard something mentioned about 

Commercial Ave and ask that this be repeated. 
 
 HENDRIX stated that when they move forward with any building on the 

north half of the property they would then have to build Commercial Ave out 



all the way across to the back side of their property and put an entrance in 
off of that side to this area as well. There would then be 2 full entrances.  

 
 ALDERMAN CHEVALIER stated that he feels that the rental aspect of this is 

not clear. He asked Mr. Hendrix if there was a way that we could get more 
assurance on what those rentals are going to look like for term durations 
and stuff like that? 

 
 HENDRIX stated that it is authorized by right in the B-3 district. There is no 

zoning issue, but we have a lot more flexibility. This is something we would 
have to evaluate through a zoning ordinance change at a later date.  

 
 DOTSON stated that she has known people who are traveling nurses or 

traveling professionals and often times they will come in with a motorhome 
or camper and struggle to find a place where they can stay from either a 
few days or a month or two while they finish working on a project. 
Something like this so close to the highway would probably work out very 
nicely for them. This was one of the reasons why I asked what the length of 
time would be.  

 
 MR. KERWIN stated that this is exactly the market we are going for.  
 
 HENDRIX stated that if it became apparent that this has converted into a 

permanent residence scenario that would allow us to look at it from a 
slightly different perspective at that point. This would them mean they 
would have to have a mobile home zoning and would then be in violation. If 
we notice that people are installing skirting around their campers and 
“putting down roots” that would warrant a notice of zoning violation related 
to the wrong zoning district.  

 
 ALDERMAN CHEVALIER stated that was essentially what he was getting at. 

He wanted some sort of enforcement action not only to help the applicant 
out but also help the city out if we ever ran into something like that. 

 
THE VOTE: ALDERMAN CHEVALIER-AYE, XAVIER-AYE, DOTSON-AYE, 
MAYOR BOLEY-AYE, SMITH-AYE.  
 
AYES-5, NOES-0. MOTION PASSED 
 

 
 



14.  HERZOG FOUNDATION SITE PLAN AMENDMENT – CABINS 
 
 HENDRIX stated that this is project is up off of 188th Street and North Main 

Street. The staff report was provided to the commission. The buildings, 
materials, buffering and landscaping are all in compliance with our code. 
The only remaining issue is related to the condition that staff has put on this 
item. Staff recommends approval conditioned upon the infrastructure 
improvements of North Main Street, as follows: 

 
Construct a new asphalt street, including appropriate sub-grade 
improvements and storm sewer as needed along the entire property line.  
The new asphalt street should be adjusted to the center of the existing right 
of way as is practicable.  The new asphalt street must include both 
curb/gutters and a 6’ sidewalk to match the 188th St. Improvements already 
underway.  The minimum standard is 8” of asphalt pavement on treated/ 
stabilized subgrade of 24’ width (plus the additional width of the curbs) and 
any taper into the existing roadway. Public Improvement plans must meet 
current City standards and approved by the Public Works Director.  
 
ALDERMAN CHEVALIER motioned to approve the Herzog Foundation site 
plan amendment. Seconded by SMITH.  
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
Kevin Weininger---Gastinger Walker Architecture---The main Herzog 
Foundation building is currently under construction. The foundation is a 
mission driven non-profit to support Christian K-12 education. The previous 
submittal which was approved about 10 months ago was for the office 
building and had included some language that a phase 2 for these cabins 
would be coming down the line but at the time was not fully understood 
from a design standpoint what that was going to entail. The cabins will be 
located on the eastern half of the property. The intent for them is to allow 
the foundations guests, some of which will be potentially staying for multiple 
days, a place to stay on the site. This will also provide a great amenity for 
the foundation to attract some very interesting well known people most 
likely to come visit, bring some attention to Smithville and northwest 
Missouri. There will be 4 buildings each with 2 cabins. We will be adding a 
parking lot specifically for the cabins. This parking lot will have an entrance 
and exit off onto 188th Street. The foundation is already spending around 
$400,000 to improve 188th Street and upgrade it with a new roadway, 
sewers, sidewalk and curb. This will actually turn the corner onto North Main 



Street for about 30-40 feet. This is already approved and under contract 
with the current builder on site. A part of the original development plan had 
list that as long as we were able to make no entrance or exit onto North 
Main Street with the future improvements with the cabins, which were 
known at the time by the city, no improvements would be required on North 
Main Street. We developed the design to follow that language that was 
already agreed to. We were a bit surprised that the staff report came out 
with the conditions that it has. The foundation is not going to agree to it. 
We would like to see some existing master plans available for future growth 
on North Main Street. What’s the long term plan for North Main Street? Or 
existing ordnances or zoning requirements that state something about street 
upgrades to help us understand some of the background behind the staff 
report.  
 
Trudy LaForce---411 NE 188th Street Smithville, MO 64089---Stated 
that her property is just east across North Main Street from the Herzog 
property. She doesn’t recall anything being mentioned at the previous 
meetings about cabins or anyone staying overnight on this property. If this 
is approved and there is a parking area will this be paved? This 
neighborhood continues to have the natural foliage that helps filter water 
run off removed as well as the foliage that serves as wind breaks. If this 
plan is approved, will North Main Street be moved to the west where it 
should be? Where will storm sewer water go when it leaves this property? 
Will the change affect how large farming equipment can use the road as 
several do? All of the water run off from this property runs eventually down 
North Main Street on the Herzog property and then under the road on to my 
property. I do have concerns about this and appreciate any information that 
can be given.  
 
HENDRIX stated that the original application that they submitted the storm 
water work on it captured all of the storm water in accordance with city 
code. We asked them to make sure that this was updated for this. They had 
over designed it in the original application. They have submitted a report 
and our engineers have approved that report. It indicates that all of the 
storm water will be detained on the site in accordance with the minimum 
current APWA standards. This is already under construction as a part of the 
original project, so the city isn’t concerned about that storm water from the 
engineering standpoint.   
 
MR. WEININGER stated that Ms. LaForce’s question about the landscaping 
and the trees he could address. There will be very few trees removed. The 



intent is to leave it as much as possible exactly as it is now. They will also 
add additional plantings to help with erosion and absorption. The parking lot 
will be paved. The lighting is all very dim. The intent is to not even see 
these buildings from the street.  
 
MS. LAFORCE stated that from the drawing she located these don’t even 
look like cabins. There has already been a lot of brush and trees removed 
from the very beginning of the work on the property so it’s not as dense. 
Now I understand this is probably to make room for these cabins. If the 
improvements are made on North Main Street what will happen when it gets 
to the end of the storm sewer on the Herzog property along North Main 
Street? 
 
MR. WEININGER stated he thinks they have a lot of the same questions 
about the purpose behind this North Main Street improvement. We would 
like to see if there is a master plan that can be viewed so that we are not 
building a street that creates other unintended issues just to have a new 
section of street. Our concerns are very much the same as far as how that 
street is draining under your property. We sympathize very much with Ms. 
LaForce. We don’t have a good idea as to why this being requested or what 
the larger plan is for North Main Street that would tell us for future utility 
improvements, future bike paths, future sidewalks. What is the City’s plan?  
 
MS. LAFORCE stated that no one has address why they are now wanting a 
facility for people to stay overnight on that property where originally she 
didn’t see anything about this on the first submittal.  
 
MR. WEININGER stated that this was in the final approval of the documents, 
and she could probably go back as they are publicly available.  The use is 
allowed by the zoning on the site.  
 
DOTSON stated that she does remember during discussion at the first 
submittal that the cabins would be brought forward for approval at a future 
meeting.  
 
HENDRIX stated that the cabins were discussed at the meeting for the site 
plan approval for the first phase of this project. The original staff position 
for this project in March, April and May 2020 was that 188th Street and 
North Main Street get the same treatment but because there was no 
development east of the creek they wouldn’t have to do any street 
improvements on North Main Street with one caveat because we hadn’t 



even done a traffic study yet. Their intent was 274 feet from 169 Hwy to 
have the entrance to the foundation. No one new at the time whether or not 
there would be a requirement of having a secondary access for something 
related to fire code. We indicated that if you have to take a secondary 
access and it goes off then into North Main Street you have to redo main 
street at that point of time. In September is the first we saw of the cabins. 
They were shadowed in on plans. We indicated that this would require a 
secondary site plan application for a second phase because we didn’t have 
enough information to evaluate it from staff’s perspective.   
 
MAYOR BOLEY asked if this came in after we approved the initial site plan? 
 
HENDRIX stated that the initial improvements for 188th Street we approved 
in May of 2020. Ordinarily, something of this size and in this area we would 
require street improvements on North Main Street and 188th Street. We had 
conversations at that time with the applicant related to the North Main 
Street improvements and obviously we had no idea there were cabins in the 
future. 
 
MAYOR BOLEY asked Mr. Weininger about his statement about us knowing 
about this all along but he doesn’t see this in the packet from May or 
anything from the packets prior to the May meeting that show cabins on this 
site. 
 
MR. WEININGER stated that Mr. Hendrix is not incorrect.  
 
MAYOR BOLEY stated that this was brought in later after we approved it. 
Staff didn’t have all of the information on what this site would look like fully 
developed and the development agreement was agreed to based off 17,000 
square foot building which is what you are building today. Is this correct? 
 
MR. WEININGER stated when we started on the project here we reached 
out to the city to let them know of our plans and said there is a 
development agreement that states once the cabin plans were being 
developed, the development agreement states if there was no entrance or 
exit off North Main Street no street improvements would be requested. The 
answer was that is correct and that is how we proceeded. We set our 
budgets for construction and scheduling based on that understanding. There 
was maybe some miscommunication, and this just caught us a little by 
surprise.  
 



MAYOR BOLEY asked if we have any documentation on when that was sent? 
Email, phone call or text? 
 
MR. WEININGER stated that they can go back and look. 
 
MAYOR BOLEY stated ok. If we led you in the wrong direction that is one 
thing but if the direction was never given that another thing. 
 
Dirk Talley---Show Me Real Estate---Representing the owner--- Is 
there an off chance that the public works department looked at this print 
and viewed it as though there was going to be an entrance on North Main 
Street? When in fact there is not. 
 
MAYOR BOLEY asked if Mr. Hendrix if this was just public work or our city 
engineer as well looking at this? 
 
HENDRIX stated that for this one it was public works. We don’t send the site 
plan design concepts to our engineers. We do these in house they do the 
storm water and traffic analysis stuff. The first the city saw of any cabin 
mention was in mid to late August when we got the very first submittal as it 
related to the foundation building. It showed up inside the traffic study that 
was conducted. It was in a reference document showing those cabins. The 
traffic study specifically was related to a 17,000 square foot building only 
and in that document there was no mention of cabins. Our public works 
director Chuck Soules and himself started looking at it and at that point in 
time we had full understanding that it went out onto 188th Street but we 
both understood that was completely different than what we knew was 
coming as it related to the street improvements. Once we saw the full 
nature of it, Chuck’s position was that this definitely triggers the Main Street 
side. If we had a full understanding that this development would have 
occurred this way we wouldn’t have taken North Main Street out of the staff 
recommendation from the original development agreement in May. That 
would have been a requirement because it’s in the code as it relates to 
development.  
 
MR. WEININGER stated that was one of their questions. Is there something 
in a development code that does state that or provides some parameters? 
 
HENDRIX stated yes and that it is the subdivision code.  
 



MR. WEININGER stated they will look this up. We just wanted to make sure 
that the planning commission is aware of the foundations position. They are 
still not in agreement. Mainly because this is 4 tiny buildings being added to 
a development it’s not going to add any foot traffic, add any pressure onto 
North Main Street. There is no one staying in these cabins that will travel 
onto North Main Street. There is just a surprise as to why such a small 
addition would trigger such a large cost. Speaking for the foundation if the 
condition remains they are not going to get built.  
 
MR. CHEVALIER asked if for some reason the cabins did happen and the 
restriction was lifted, is there anything else that is going to happen that we 
don’t know about today? 
 
MR. WEININGER stated not within city limits. 
 
XAVIER stated that she has a sense that there is a need for conflict 
resolution here before I vote on this. I am picking up some tension. She 
understands Mr. Weininger’s position, and she also understands Mr. Hendrix 
position. I would feel a little more comfortable if we just tabled this. I would 
like everyone to be on the same page and have a good feeling about all of 
this.  
 
DOTSON agreed with Xavier.  
 
MAYOR BOLEY agreed with Xavier’s assessment. We either table it or we 
take a yes/no vote.  
 
ALDERMAN CHEVALIER asked Mr. Hendrix if as far as the negotiation is 
concerned, is there any potential flexibility on the asphalt, or maybe just a 
sidewalk requirement and less input on the asphalt? Is this something the 
city can be flexible with? 
 
HENDRIX stated that the code has certain standards as to what we are 
supposed to require. If we had known about it up front we would have 
resolved it then. From a staff’s perspective, no we don’t really have that 
authority. The only entity that has the authority to waive its own 
requirements is the Board of Alderman.  
 
DOTSON stated that she has felt the tension during the discussion tonight. 
She would like to see an agreement come together to make both side 
happier.  



 
XAVIER motioned to postpone the Herzog Foundation site plan amendment.  
 
ALDERMAN CHEVALIER suggested that we table this item instead to allow 
more time for negotiations to happen.  
 
XAVIER withdrew her previous motion. 
 
XAVIER motioned to table the Herzog Foundation site plan amendment. 
Seconded by ALDERMAN CHEVALIER.  
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
MAYOR BOLEY asked if there is anything specific that you all want to come 
back to for the reason that we need to table this? 
 
ALDERMAN CHEVALIER stated that he doesn’t know how it would be 
brought to the Alderman if it doesn’t pass this commission to begin with. Is 
there any possibility that Alderman can look at any changed? Whatever can 
be looked at I think should be looked at.  
 
MAYOR BOLEY stated that he recalls Mr. Chevalier making a comment in the 
past about the sidewalk on 180th Street and how it’s a sidewalk to nowhere. 
So, do we get into that with this if we build a sidewalk on North Main 
Street? I don’t disagree with storm water improvements. That road will be 
impacted regardless. When you add more people, they are going to take 
different routes. It’s a road to get there.  
 
THE VOTE: MAYOR BOLEY-AYE, DOTSON-AYE, XAVIER-AYE, ALDERMAN 
CHEVALIER-AYE, SMITH-AYE.  
 
AYES-5, NOES-0. MOTION PASSED 
 

 
15.  ADJOURN   

 
 MAYOR BOLEY made a motion to adjourn.  DOTSON seconded the motion. 

 
VOICE VOTE:  UNANIMOUS 
 

SMITH declared the session adjourned at 8:34 p.m. 



 

 
  

Date: July 1, 2021 

Prepared By: Jack Hendrix 

Subject: Kozak’s Laketown Grill Site Plan  
                                                                                                                                      
 
Kozak’s came to the Planning Commission in October of 2019 for site plan approval and 
that submission was ultimately approved.  In March of 2020, due to cost overruns on 
the approved design, Kozak’s submitted plans for city review for a newly designed 
building in part to reduce costs and improve the design.  That review was pulled due to 
the Covid-19 uncertainties and utility relocation concerns.  The applicant has now 
submitted a slightly different design for site plan review to create a 5,835 ft2, two-story 
restaurant to be constructed on Stonebridge Ln. just east of the Show Me Realty 
building at 169 and Stonebridge Ln.  Staff provided comments to the applicant on June 
30th as follows: 

1. The street sidewalk must be 5’ wide and placed 1’ off the property line to create 
a separation from the vehicular traffic and pedestrians. 

2. Nothing in the Site Plan Approval will address the signage as shown on the plans, 
as that is subject to a separate permit and must meet the requirements of the code at 
the time the permits are sought. 

At the time of this report, we have not seen plan revisions or an acknowledgement of 
these comments, but staff is proceeding with the assumption that the plans will be 
amended, or the comments agreed to prior to the July 13th meeting. 

Staff is working with the applicant on a plan that will potentially address various 
sanitary and stormwater improvements necessary to accept the proposed development 
in the location described, along with several other area lots.  At this time, staff cannot 
recommend approval of any construction without certain conditions being placed upon 
this approval by the Commission and Board.  Specifically, staff recommends approval 
upon acceptance of plans and improvements as described: 

1. Sanitary Sewer Plans to address the capacity deficit of the existing city sewers in 
the area are approved and constructed. 

2. Storm water detention Plans (for either the restaurant or the entire 
development) are approved and constructed. 

 

STAFF REPORT 



KOZAK'S LAKETOWN GRILL
Smithville, Missouri

ARCHITECT:
A3G Architects
Aimee D. Gray

110 N Main Street
Liberty, Missouri 64068

816.581.6333
www.a3garchitects.com

CIVIL ENGINEER:
Renaissance Infrastructure Consulting
Mick Slutter

1815 McGee Street, Suite 200
Kansas City, Missouri 64108

816.820.2554
www.ric-consult.com/

STRUCTURAL ENGINEER:
Apex Engineers, Inc.
Bryce Crady

1625 Locust Street
Kansas City, Missouri 64108

816.421.3222
www.apex-engineers.com/

MEP ENGINEER:
Welch & Mitchell Inc.
Michael Welch / Cory Mitchell

4370 W. 109th St., Ste 203
Overland Park, Kansas 66211

913.544.1627
www.welchmitchell.com

GENERAL CONSTRACTOR
Axis Construction Group

1501 Burlington Street 
North Kansas City, Missouri 64116

816.730.4622
https://www.acgbuilt.com/

SHEET LIST

Cover Sheet
A1.1 First Floor Plan
A1.2 Second Floor Plan
A2.0 Exterior Elevations
A2.1 Exterior Elevations
C01 Title Sheet
C02 Existing Conditions
C03 General Layout
C04 Grading Plan
C05 Utility Plan
L01 Landscape Plan



UP

FD

soda 
bags  
co2

trash

grease

SEATING BREAK DOWN
26 patio
48 private dining
29 bar
54 dining room
46 mezzanine
40 roof top patio
243 TOTAL

Buffet

W D
819 SF

Bar
101

1142 SF

Dining
Room
106

864 SF

Kitchen
103

699 SF

Brewhouse
102

68 SF

Vestibule
100

103 SF

Men's
Restroom
108

151 SF

Women's
Restroom
109

69 SF

Office
105

Linear Floor Drain

Fire and backflow 
entrance

400 SF

Prep
Kitchen
104

81 SF

9x8 Keg
Cooler
107

Drive thru window

627 SF

Private
Dining
110

Keg Washer

Grain

Ho
t W
at
er
 

Ho
ld
in
g 
Ta
nk

8x12 Walk in 
Refridgerator

8x8 Walk in 
Freezer

Soda

18' - 0" 44' - 0" 32' - 0" 9' - 4"

7' - 0"
37' - 0"

12' - 0"
12' - 0"

18' - 0" 44' - 0" 32' - 0" 9' - 4"

15' - 0"
16' - 0"

22' - 0"
15' - 0"

68' - 0"

103' - 4"

30' - 0"

A4.3

M1

So
da

M14

A4.4

F14

Knox Box

28 SF

Room
111

A2.0A1

A2.0

J1

A2.1 A1

A2.1

J1

Project Number: Copyright 2020c

ISSUED FOR:

A
1 32 242322212019181716151413121110987654

2 31 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24

B

C

D

E

F

G

H

J

K

L

M

N

P

Q

R R

Q

P

N

M

L

K

J

H

G

F

E

D

C

B

A

3AG Architects, LLC
Missouri Certificate of Authority: 

#A-014000783

Aimee D. Gray - Architect
Missouri License # A-2007019924 

110 North Main Street
Liberty, Missouri 64068
p 816.581.6330

www.a3garchitects.com

NO
T F
OR
 CO
NS
TR
UC
TIO
N

C:
\U
se
rs\
Br
an
di 
At
we
ll\A
3G
 A
rch
ite
cts
\A
3G
 A
rch
ite
cts
 - 
Do
cu
me
nts
\A
3G
 P
ro
jec
ts\
Ko
Za
k's
 La
ke
tow
n G
rill
\D
ra
wi
ng
s\K
oz
ak
's 
La
ke
tow
n G
rill
.rv
t

A1.1

First Floor Plan

19.056

Apex Engineers, Inc.
1625 Locust St
Kansas City, Missouri 64108
816.421.3222

Welch and Mitchell, Inc.
4370 W 109th St #203
Overland Park, KS 66211
913.544.1627

Renaissance Infrastructure Consulting
1815 McGee Street, Suite 200
Kansas City, Missouri 64108
816.820.2554

Planning and Zoning 28 June 2021

Br
ian
 an
d J
ac
qu
ie 
Ho
ve

40
4 
La
ke
vi
ew
 D
riv
e

Sm
ith
vi
lle
, M
iss
ou
ri 
64
08
9

91
3.
42
8.
67
52
 / 
81
6.
72
8.
20
47

Ko
Za
k'
s L
ak
et
ow
n 
Gr
ill

STRUCTURAL ENGINEER

MECHANICAL/ELECTRICAL/PLUMBING
ENGINEER

CIVIL ENGINEER

Sm
ith
vi
lle
, M
iss
ou
ri 
64
08
9

 1/4" = 1'-0"A2.0

A1 First Floor Plan
N

0 1' 2' 4'



DN

772 SF

Second
Floor
Dining
200

Open to below

Rooftop for mechanical equipment

42 SF

Mechanical
203

203
A

203
B

Access ladder

53 SF

Storage
202

Open to below

16' - 4"

8'
 - 
9"

8'
 - 
9"

8'
 - 
9"

8'
 - 
9"

35
' -
 0
"

34' - 0"

Project Number: Copyright 2020c

ISSUED FOR:

A
1 32 242322212019181716151413121110987654

2 31 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24

B

C

D

E

F

G

H

J

K

L

M

N

P

Q

R R

Q

P

N

M

L

K

J

H

G

F

E

D

C

B

A

3AG Architects, LLC
Missouri Certificate of Authority: 

#A-014000783

Aimee D. Gray - Architect
Missouri License # A-2007019924 

110 North Main Street
Liberty, Missouri 64068
p 816.581.6330

www.a3garchitects.com

NO
T F
OR
 CO
NS
TR
UC
TIO
N

C:
\U
se
rs\
Br
an
di 
At
we
ll\A
3G
 A
rch
ite
cts
\A
3G
 A
rch
ite
cts
 - 
Do
cu
me
nts
\A
3G
 P
ro
jec
ts\
Ko
Za
k's
 La
ke
tow
n G
rill
\D
ra
wi
ng
s\K
oz
ak
's 
La
ke
tow
n G
rill
.rv
t

A1.2

Second Floor Plan

19.056

Apex Engineers, Inc.
1625 Locust St
Kansas City, Missouri 64108
816.421.3222

Welch and Mitchell, Inc.
4370 W 109th St #203
Overland Park, KS 66211
913.544.1627

Renaissance Infrastructure Consulting
1815 McGee Street, Suite 200
Kansas City, Missouri 64108
816.820.2554

Planning and Zoning 28 June 2021

Br
ian
 an
d J
ac
qu
ie 
Ho
ve

40
4 
La
ke
vi
ew
 D
riv
e

Sm
ith
vi
lle
, M
iss
ou
ri 
64
08
9

91
3.
42
8.
67
52
 / 
81
6.
72
8.
20
47

Ko
Za
k'
s L
ak
et
ow
n 
Gr
ill

STRUCTURAL ENGINEER

MECHANICAL/ELECTRICAL/PLUMBING
ENGINEER

CIVIL ENGINEER

Sm
ith
vi
lle
, M
iss
ou
ri 
64
08
9

 1/4" = 1'-0"A2.0

A1 Second Floor Plan
N

0 1' 2' 4'



First Floor
0"

Roof
20' - 0"

Second Floor
11' - 0"

11
' -
 0
"

Relocated building sign 
from existing restaurant

First Floor
0"

Roof
20' - 0"

Second Floor
11' - 0"

Corrugated metal roof 
panels, galvanized

Knox box

Stucco; STO High Impact System 0'-0" - 10'-0" above Floor 1, Color: 16299 76 C1
STO Standard System >10'-0" above Floor 1, Color: 16299 76 C1 

Thin Brick; Painted, Sherwin Williams, 
Color: SW6990-Caviar

Concrete Masonry Units; Painted, Sherwin Williams, 
Color: SW6990-Caviar

Corrugated Metal Wall Panels; Galvanized

Project Number: Copyright 2020c

ISSUED FOR:

A
1 32 242322212019181716151413121110987654

2 31 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24

B

C

D

E

F

G

H

J

K

L

M

N

P

Q

R R

Q

P

N

M

L

K

J

H

G

F

E

D

C

B

A

3AG Architects, LLC
Missouri Certificate of Authority: 

#A-014000783

Aimee D. Gray - Architect
Missouri License # A-2007019924 

110 North Main Street
Liberty, Missouri 64068
p 816.581.6330

www.a3garchitects.com

NO
T F
OR
 CO
NS
TR
UC
TIO
N

C:
\U
se
rs\
Br
an
di 
At
we
ll\A
3G
 A
rch
ite
cts
\A
3G
 A
rch
ite
cts
 - 
Do
cu
me
nts
\A
3G
 P
ro
jec
ts\
Ko
Za
k's
 La
ke
tow
n G
rill
\D
ra
wi
ng
s\K
oz
ak
's 
La
ke
tow
n G
rill
.rv
t

A2.0

Exterior Elevations

19.056

Apex Engineers, Inc.
1625 Locust St
Kansas City, Missouri 64108
816.421.3222

Welch and Mitchell, Inc.
4370 W 109th St #203
Overland Park, KS 66211
913.544.1627

Renaissance Infrastructure Consulting
1815 McGee Street, Suite 200
Kansas City, Missouri 64108
816.820.2554

Planning and Zoning 28 June 2021

Br
ian
 an
d J
ac
qu
ie 
Ho
ve

40
4 
La
ke
vi
ew
 D
riv
e

Sm
ith
vi
lle
, M
iss
ou
ri 
64
08
9

91
3.
42
8.
67
52
 / 
81
6.
72
8.
20
47

Ko
Za
k'
s L
ak
et
ow
n 
Gr
ill

STRUCTURAL ENGINEER

MECHANICAL/ELECTRICAL/PLUMBING
ENGINEER

CIVIL ENGINEER

Sm
ith
vi
lle
, M
iss
ou
ri 
64
08
9

0 1' 2' 4'

 1/4" = 1'-0"A1.1

J1 North Elevation
0 1' 2' 4'

 1/4" = 1'-0"A1.1

A1 East Elevation
0 1' 2' 4'

0 1' 2' 4'



First Floor
0"

Roof
20' - 0"

Second Floor
11' - 0"

STO
 High Im

pact System
9' - 0"

10' - 0"
9' - 0"

First Floor
0"

Roof
20' - 0"

Second Floor
11' - 0"

16' - 0"

24' - 0"

Stucco; STO High Impact System 0'-0" - 10'-0" above Floor 1, Color: 16299 76 C1
STO Standard System >10'-0" above Floor 1, Color: 16299 76 C1 

Thin Brick; Painted, Sherwin Williams, 
Color: SW6990-Caviar

Concrete Masonry Units; Painted, Sherwin Williams, 
Color: SW6990-Caviar

Corrugated Metal Wall Panels; Galvanized

Project Number: Copyright 2020c

ISSUED FOR:

A
1 32 242322212019181716151413121110987654

2 31 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24

B

C

D

E

F

G

H

J

K

L

M

N

P

Q

R R

Q

P

N

M

L

K

J

H

G

F

E

D

C

B

A

3AG Architects, LLC
Missouri Certificate of Authority: 

#A-014000783

Aimee D. Gray - Architect
Missouri License # A-2007019924 

110 North Main Street
Liberty, Missouri 64068
p 816.581.6330

www.a3garchitects.com

NO
T F
OR
 CO
NS
TR
UC
TIO
N

C:
\U
se
rs\
Br
an
di 
At
we
ll\A
3G
 A
rch
ite
cts
\A
3G
 A
rch
ite
cts
 - 
Do
cu
me
nts
\A
3G
 P
ro
jec
ts\
Ko
Za
k's
 La
ke
tow
n G
rill
\D
ra
wi
ng
s\K
oz
ak
's 
La
ke
tow
n G
rill
.rv
t

A2.1

Exterior Elevations

19.056

Apex Engineers, Inc.
1625 Locust St
Kansas City, Missouri 64108
816.421.3222

Welch and Mitchell, Inc.
4370 W 109th St #203
Overland Park, KS 66211
913.544.1627

Renaissance Infrastructure Consulting
1815 McGee Street, Suite 200
Kansas City, Missouri 64108
816.820.2554

Planning and Zoning 28 June 2021

Br
ian
 an
d J
ac
qu
ie 
Ho
ve

40
4 
La
ke
vi
ew
 D
riv
e

Sm
ith
vi
lle
, M
iss
ou
ri 
64
08
9

91
3.
42
8.
67
52
 / 
81
6.
72
8.
20
47

Ko
Za
k'
s L
ak
et
ow
n 
Gr
ill

STRUCTURAL ENGINEER

MECHANICAL/ELECTRICAL/PLUMBING
ENGINEER

CIVIL ENGINEER

Sm
ith
vi
lle
, M
iss
ou
ri 
64
08
9

0 1' 2' 4'

0 1' 2' 4' 1/4" = 1'-0"A1.1

J1 South Elevation

 1/4" = 1'-0"A1.1

A1 West Elevation



W/LW/LUGP UGPFIRE FIRE FIRE FIRE
ST ST ST

ST

ST
ST

trash

grease

Drive thru window

ST

0 100'50'

1"=100'

Fi
na

l S
ite

 P
la

n

20
-0

10
8

Ko
Za

k'
s 

La
ke

to
w

n 
G

ril
l

Sm
ith

vi
lle

, C
la

y 
C

ou
nt

y,
 M

is
so

ur
i

C01
 J

un
 2

8 
, 2

02
1-

3:
34

pm
Z:

\R
IC

 D
es

ig
n\

20
20

\2
0-

01
08

\D
w

g\
Sh

ee
ts

\P
SP

\2
0-

01
08

 P
ST

TL
S0

1.
dw

g

N
O

.
BY

D
AT

E
R

EV
IS

IO
N

Q
D

Sheet

18
15

 M
cG

ee
 S

tr
ee

t,
 S

ui
te

. 
2
0
0

8
16

.8
0
0
.0

9
5
0

K
a
ns

a
s 

C
it
y,

 M
is
so

ur
i 
6
4
10

8
w
w
w
.r

ic
-c

on
su

lt
.c

om

M
O

 C
er

tif
ic

at
e 

of
 A

ut
ho

rit
y:

E-
20

10
03

36
30

PN
C

06
/2

9/
20

21
M

ES
1

O
R

IG
IN

AL
 S

U
BM

IS
SI

O
N

Ti
tle

 S
he

et

GENERAL NOTES

1. All work in public easements and right of way and all erosion control work must comply with the
latest edition of the Technical Provisions & Standard Drawings for Roads and Sewers, of the
City of Smithville, Clay County, Missouri.  If any general notes conflict with the Technical
Provisions & Standard Drawings for Roads and Sewers, of the City of Smithville, the City of
Smithville's standards shall override.

2. The contractor shall provide evidence that his insurance meets the requirements of the City of
Smithville.

3. All traffic control shall be in conformance with the Manual of Uniform Traffic Control Devices
(MUTCD).

4. The contractor is responsible for the protection of all property corners and section corners. Any
property corners and/or section corners disturbed or damaged by construction activities shall be
reset by a Registered Land Surveyor licensed in the State of Missouri, at the contractor's
expense.

5. The contractor shall be responsible for the restoration of the right-of-way and for damaged
improvements such as curbs, driveways, sidewalks, street light and traffic signal junction boxes,
traffic signal loop lead ins, signal poles, irrigation systems, etc. Damaged improvements shall be
repaired in conformance with the latest City standards and to the City's satisfaction.

6. The contractor is responsible for providing erosion and sediment control BMPs to prevent
sediment from reaching paved areas, storm sewer systems, drainage courses and adjacent
properties. In the event the prevention measures are not effective, the contractor shall remove
any debris, silt, or mud and restore the right-of-way, or adjacent properties to original or better
condition.

7. The contractor shall remove existing trees and shrubbery within the right-of-way adjacent to
future thoroughfare improvements.

8. The contractor shall sod all disturbed areas within the public street right-of-way unless otherwise
noted on the plans or if specific written approval is granted by the City.

9. All public street sidewalk ramps constructed will be required to comply with the Americans with
Disabilities Act (ADA) and Smithville, Missouri sidewalk details.

11. Excavation for utility work in public street right-of-way requires a Right-of-Way Work Permit from
the Public Works Department, in addition to all other permits.

12. All work shall be confined within easements and/or construction limits as shown on the plans.
13. Curb stakes and hubs shall be provided at all high points, low points, ADA ramp openings, and

on each side of all curb inlets when setting string line.
14. Any existing and/or temporary storm sewer pipes and box culverts to be abandoned in place

shall be grouted using a slurry grout mixture meeting a 7-day compressive strength of 100-150
psi. The slurry grout mixture of fly ash, cement, fine aggregate, forming agents and water shall
be approved by the City and shall possess adequate flow characteristics to fill all voids.

15. All existing utilities indicated on the drawings are according to the best information available to
the engineer; however, all utilities actually existing may not be shown.  The contractor shall be
responsible for contacting all utility companies for an exact field location of each utility prior to
any construction.  All utilities, shown and un-shown, damaged through the negligence of the
contractor shall be repaired or replaced by the contractor at his expense.

16. The contractor will be responsible for all damages to existing utilities, pavement, fences,
structures, and other features not designated for removal.  The contractor shall repair all
damages at his expense.

17. By use of these construction documents the contractor hereby agrees that he shall be solely
responsible for the safety of the construction workers and the public.  The contractor agrees to
hold the engineer and owner harmless for any and all injuries, claims, losses, or damages
related to the project.

18. The contractor will be responsible for providing all signage, barricades, lighting, etc., as required
for temporary traffic control during the construction of this project.  Maintenance of the
temporary traffic control devices will be the contractor's responsibility.  All traffic control in
conduction with construction in the right-of-way shall be in conformance with the City Traffic
Control Requirements.

19. Geogrid, footings, or other elements of retaining wall(s) cannot encroach into the right of way,
public easements, or adjacent private property.

20. All building and life safety issues shall comply with the 2006 International Fire Code and local
amendments as adopted by Smithville, Missouri.

21. Contractor shall be responsible for obtaining all permits including land disturbance, right-of-way,
hauling, etc., with Public Works prior to construction.

22. Contractor shall restore all disturbed right-of-way upon project completion.
23. Prior to construction, contractor shall install pre-construction erosion control measures.
24. The Architect shall be responsible for specifying retaining wall block type and color. The

contractor shall be responsible for structural design of retaining walls. All retaining wall design
shall be completed by a registered engineer in the State of Missouri.  Black Aluminum Fencing
shall be placed on all walls with a height over 30".

LEGEND

Existing Section Line Proposed Right-of-Way
Existing Right-of-Way Line Proposed Property Line
Existing Lot Line Proposed Lot Line
Existing Easement Line Proposed Easement
Existing Curb & Gutter Proposed Curb & Gutter
Existing Sidewalk Proposed Sidewalk
Existing Storm Sewer Proposed Storm Sewer
Existing Storm Structure Proposed Storm Structure
Existing Waterline Proposed Fire Hydrant
Existing Gas Main Proposed Waterline
Existing Sanitary Sewer Proposed Sanitary Sewer
Existing Sanitary Manhole Proposed Sanitary Manhole
Existing Contour Major Proposed Contour Major
Existing Contour Minor Proposed Contour Minor

Future Curb and Gutter
Utility Easement
Sanitary Sewer Easement Access Easement
Drainage Easement Temporary Easement

GAS GAS GAS GAS

SS

Project Location:

Lots 1, 2, and 3 of Tally Plaza Final Plat, a subdivision location in a part of the west 12 of the southwest 14 of
Section 26, Township 53 North, Range 33 West, Smithville, Clay County, Missouri.

ENGINEER:
Mick Slutter, PE
1815 McGee St, #200
Kansas City, MO 64108
(816) 800-0950

Site Benchmark & Control:

BM "1000": Square cut on the southwest corner of the concrete curb inlet on the north side of 
Stonebridge Lane
Elev.=  935.06

CONTROL POINT 39:
N.1166855.626 E.2765464.469
FND. 1/2" REBAR W/ LS120 CAP
NW. COR. LOT1, TALLEY PLAZA
7.98' N. TO TOP BACK OF CURB STONE BRIDGE LN.
29.77' WNW. TO MAIL BOX.
35.60' SW. TO ℄ SANITARY MH.

CONTROL POINT 65:
N.1166849.525 E.2765843.979
SET 1/2" REBAR W/ LS120 CAP
PROPERTY CORNER ON N. LINE LOT 4
13.07' N. TO TOP BACK OF CURB STONE BRIDGE LN.
67.70' NW. TO SW. CORNER CONC. CURB INLET &
"□" CUT FOR BENCHMARK.
13.81' W. TO 1/2" REBAR W/ LS120 CAP,
NE. COR. LOT 3 & NW. COR. LOT 4.

Floodplain Note:

According to the F.E.M.A. Flood Insurance Rate Map Number 29047C0102E, effective August 3rd,
2015, this tract graphically lies in: Zone X, Area of Minimal Flood Hazard.

Final Site Plan For

KoZak's Laketown Grill
Smithville, Clay County, Missouri
Total Project Area:  1.42 Acres

OWNER:
Developer
Owner/Dev. Address
816.268.2434

LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT:
Andy Gabbert, PLA
8653 Penrose Ln.
 Lenexa, KS 66219
(816) 800-0950

SURVEYOR:
Brent Thompson, PS
132 Avvie Ave.
Kansas City, Kansas, 66103
(816) 800-0950

ARCHITECT:
Chris Hafner, AIA
4301 Indian Creek Pkwy.
Overland Park, Kansas 66207
(913) 451-9390

BM "1000"

16
9 

H
W

Y

Cutting Dr

Stonebridge Ln

N
O R T H

N

LOCATION MAP
S26 T53N R33W
Scale 1" = 2000'

16
9 

H
W

Y

W 92 HWY

S 
C

om
m

er
ci

al
 A

ve

Stonebridge Ln

C
ou

nt
y 

R
d.

 D
D

Project Location

Liberty St. Sheet List Table
Sheet Number Sheet Title

C01 Title Sheet
C02 Existing Conditions

C03 General Layout

C04 Grading Plan

C05 Utility Plan

L01 Landscape Plan

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
CO

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
U/E

AutoCAD SHX Text
SS/E

AutoCAD SHX Text
D/E

AutoCAD SHX Text
A/E

AutoCAD SHX Text
T/E



STONE BRIDGE LN
60' Public Access

□

□

STONE BRIDGE LN60' Public Access

951

950

949

948

947

946

945

944

943

942

941

940

939

938

937 936

935

935

934

933

95
5

953

954

954

953

95
2

951

950

949

948

95
3

950

94
5

94
0

935

93
0

929

928

92
7

LOT 1 LOT 2 LOT 3 LOT 4

LOT 5

TALLEY PLAZA

LOT 2
LOT 1

TALLEY PLAZA TALLEY PLAZA TALLEY PLAZA

TALLEY PLAZA

N
O R T H

0 20'10'

1"=20'

Fi
na

l S
ite

 P
la

n

20
-0

10
8

Ko
Za

k'
s 

La
ke

to
w

n 
G

ril
l

Sm
ith

vi
lle

, C
la

y 
C

ou
nt

y,
 M

is
so

ur
i

C02
 J

un
 2

8 
, 2

02
1-

2:
59

pm
Z:

\R
IC

 D
es

ig
n\

20
20

\2
0-

01
08

\D
w

g\
Sh

ee
ts

\P
SP

\2
0-

01
08

 P
SE

XC
D

01
.d

w
g

N
O

.
BY

D
AT

E
R

EV
IS

IO
N

Q
D

Sheet

18
15

 M
cG

ee
 S

tr
ee

t,
 S

ui
te

. 
2
0
0

8
16

.8
0
0
.0

9
5
0

K
a
ns

a
s 

C
it
y,

 M
is
so

ur
i 
6
4
10

8
w
w
w
.r

ic
-c

on
su

lt
.c

om

M
O

 C
er

tif
ic

at
e 

of
 A

ut
ho

rit
y:

E-
20

10
03

36
30

PN
C

06
/2

9/
20

21
M

ES
1

O
R

IG
IN

AL
 S

U
BM

IS
SI

O
N

Ex
is

tin
g 

C
on

di
tio

ns

15'
Utility Esmt.

10'
Utility Esmt.

Property Line

20'
Electrical & Telephone

Esmt.

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
CO

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUSINESS SIGN

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC. SURFACE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPH. SURFACE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC. SURFACE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC. SURFACE

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRASS

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.5' MOUNTABLE CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.5' MOUNTABLE CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
2' CURB & GUTTER

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHED

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONTROL POINT 39: N.1166855.626 E.2765464.469 FND. 1/2" REBAR W/ LS120 CAP NW. COR. LOT1, TALLEY PLAZA 7.98' N. TO TOP BACK OF CURB STONE BRIDGE LN. 29.77' WNW. TO MAIL BOX. 35.60' SW. TO   SANITARY MH.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONTROL POINT 65: N.1166849.525 E.2765843.979 SET 1/2" REBAR W/ LS120 CAP PROPERTY CORNER ON N. LINE LOT 4 13.07' N. TO TOP BACK OF CURB STONE BRIDGE LN. 67.70' NW. TO SW. CORNER CONC. CURB INLET &        " " CUT FOR BENCHMARK. " CUT FOR BENCHMARK. 13.81' W. TO 1/2" REBAR W/ LS120 CAP,        NE. COR. LOT 3 & NW. COR. LOT 4.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BENCHMARK "1000": ELEV.: 935.06 " " CUT ON SW. CORNER CONC. CURB INLET " CUT ON SW. CORNER CONC. CURB INLET  SW. CORNER CONC. CURB INLET N. SIDE STONE BRIDGE LN 20.0' N. TO   AREA INLET.  67.70' SE. TO CONTROL POINT 65, 1/2" REBAR W/ LS120 CAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.006'S

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.012'E

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.003'N

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.030'E

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.135'S

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.034'W

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.040'S

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.038'E

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.024'N

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.028'E

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.004'S

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.005'W

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.005'N

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.004'E

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.005'N

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.066'E

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.018'N

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.046'E

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.017'N

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.027'E

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.017'S

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.007'W

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.028'N

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.050'E

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.008'S

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.038'W

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.040'S

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.023'W

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.006'S

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.029'W

AutoCAD SHX Text
4' DIA. CONC. MH TOP ELEV=943.70 FL IN(NW)8" VCP=934.40 FL OUT(E)8" VCP=932.03

AutoCAD SHX Text
4' DIA. CONC. MH TOP ELEV=952.70 FL IN(N)8" VCP=942.18 FL OUT(SE)8" VCP=942.02

AutoCAD SHX Text
4' DIA. CONC. MH TOP ELEV=925.85 FL IN(W)8" VCP=918.16 FL IN(S)8" PVC=918.20 FL OUT(E)8" VCP=918.07

AutoCAD SHX Text
4'x3.5' CONC. CURB INLET TOP ELEV=930.61 FL IN(W)36" HDPE=924.31 FL OUT(S)36" HDPE=924.03

AutoCAD SHX Text
5'x3' CONC. CURB INLET TOP ELEV=930.52 1' OF WATER FL IN(N)36" HDPE=923.97 FL OUT(S)36" HDPE=923.64

AutoCAD SHX Text
4'x4' CONC. AREA INLET TOP ELEV=936.54 FL IN(NE)18" HDPE=926.54 FL OUT(S)30" HDPE=926.39

AutoCAD SHX Text
11'x3.5' CONC. CURB INLET TOP ELEV=935.13 FL IN(N)30" HDPE=925.73 FL OUT(E)36" HDPE=925.38



STONE BRIDGE LN
60' Public Access

SSSS

UG
P

UG
P

UG
P

UG
P

G
AS

G
AS

G
AS

G
AS

TE
LE

TE
LE

TE
LE

TE
LE

W
/L

W
/L

W/LW/LW/LW/LW/LW/LW/LW/LW/LW/L

UGP UGP UGP UGP UGP UGP

FIRE FIRE FIRE FIRE FIRE FIRE FIRE FIRE FIRE FIRE FIRE FIRE FIRE FIRE

FI
R

E
FI

R
E

FI
R

E

ST

ST

ST

ST

ST ST ST ST ST ST ST ST ST ST ST ST ST ST ST ST ST

ST
ST

ST
ST

ST
ST

ST
ST

ST
ST

ST
ST

ST
ST

ST
ST

ST

ST

trash

grease

Drive thru window

ST ST ST ST ST

ST

ST

ST ST
ST

ST
ST

ST
ST

ST

ST

N
O R T H

0 20'10'

1"=20'

Fi
na

l S
ite

 P
la

n

20
-0

10
8

Ko
Za

k'
s 

La
ke

to
w

n 
G

ril
l

Sm
ith

vi
lle

, C
la

y 
C

ou
nt

y,
 M

is
so

ur
i

C03
 J

un
 2

8 
, 2

02
1-

3:
00

pm
Z:

\R
IC

 D
es

ig
n\

20
20

\2
0-

01
08

\D
w

g\
Sh

ee
ts

\P
SP

\2
0-

01
08

 P
SG

EN
L0

1.
dw

g

N
O

.
BY

D
AT

E
R

EV
IS

IO
N

Q
D

Sheet

18
15

 M
cG

ee
 S

tr
ee

t,
 S

ui
te

. 
2
0
0

8
16

.8
0
0
.0

9
5
0

K
a
ns

a
s 

C
it
y,

 M
is
so

ur
i 
6
4
10

8
w
w
w
.r

ic
-c

on
su

lt
.c

om

M
O

 C
er

tif
ic

at
e 

of
 A

ut
ho

rit
y:

E-
20

10
03

36
30

PN
C

06
/2

9/
20

21
M

ES
1

O
R

IG
IN

AL
 S

U
BM

IS
SI

O
N

G
en

er
al

 L
ay

ou
t

15

14 11

18

26

18

19'
Typ.

8.5'
Typ.

R3' R3'

R3'
R3'

R5'

R25'

R3'

R25'

R3'

R3'

R3'

R3'

R8'

R35'

R10'R50'

R20'

R2' R2'

R2'

R2'

R25'R25'

28.0' 28.0'

24.0'

27.5'

27.5'

24.7'

27.5'

27.5'

24.0'

Proposed
Restaurant
5,835± SF

Property Line

Property Line

5' Building Setback

5' Building Setback

5' Building Setback

Proposed Retaining Wall

Proposed Retaining Wall

Existing Gas Line

Existing Sanitary
Force Main

Existing Water Line

Existing Storm Sewer

Existing Sanitary Sewer

Existing Undergound Telephone

Proposed Trash
Enclosure

Existing Sanitary Sewer

Existing Sanitary
Force Main

Existing Water Meter Typ.

Existing Water Valve Typ.

Existing Fire Hydrant

60.0' R/W 32.0'

209.5'

299.2'

209.8'

291.8'

61.5'

61.3'

31.2'

130.0'

24.0'

90.6'

LEGEND

Dry Curb

                         Wet Curb

Ribbon Curb

Asphaltic Concrete

Portland Cement Concrete

Site Data Table:

Lot Area: 61,855 SF/1.42 Ac
Building Area: 5,835± SF
Proposed Impervious Area: 50,094 SF (81%)
Pervious Area
(Open Space): 11,752 (19%)
Maximum Building Height: 23.167 FT

Proposed Parking:
Parking Required: 110 (1 space per 2.5 seats)

275 Seats/ 2.5 = 110
Parking Provided: 112 Stalls (6 Accessible ADA)

3 2 2 1

1099 169WY HWY
Zoning B-3

Highview Subdivision
Lot 2

Zoning B-3
Highview Subdivision

Lot 1
Zoning B-3

98 Stonebridge Ln
Zoning B-3

1101 169 HWY
Zoning B-3

1103 169 HWY
Zoning B-3

112 92 HWY
Zoning B-3

Talley Plaza
Lot 4

Zoning B-3

R
eg

io
na

l D
et

en
tio

n 
Ar

ea
(B

y 
O

th
er

s)

1

BM "1000"

Control Point 65

Control Point 39

Drive Thru Lane

1

88.4'

91.3'
79.2'

130.0'

Property Line

5' Building Setback

01

Proposed Storm Sewer
(Typ.)

Sanitary Sewer Service Line

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
CO

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
S



SSSS

UG
P

UG
P

UG
P

UG
P

G
AS

G
AS

G
AS

G
AS

TE
LE

TE
LE

TE
LE

TE
LE

W
/L

W
/L

W/LW/LW/LW/LW/LW/LW/LW/LW/LW/L

UGP UGP UGP UGP UGP UGP UGP

FIRE FIRE FIRE FIRE FIRE FIRE FIRE FIRE FIRE FIRE FIRE FIRE FIRE FIRE FIRE

FI
R

E
FI

R
E

FI
R

E

ST

ST

ST

ST

ST ST ST ST ST ST ST ST ST ST ST ST ST ST ST ST ST

ST
ST

ST
ST

ST
ST

ST
ST

ST
ST

ST
ST

ST
ST

ST
ST

ST

ST

trash

grease

Drive thru window

ST ST ST ST ST

ST

ST

ST ST
ST

ST
ST

ST
ST

ST

ST

948

949

947 94
6

945

944

943

945

945

94
5

941

940

939

942

94
3

94
0 93

5

STONE BRIDGE LN
60' Public Access STONE BRIDGE LN

93594
094

5

950

933

934

936

93793
8

93
9

94
1

94
2

94
3

94
4

946

947

948

949

951

930
93

5

940

94
5

95
0

928929

931931

93
193
293

393
493

693
7

93
8

93
9

94194
2

94
394

4

94
6

94
7

948

94
9

95
1

952

95
3

954 954

95
4

94
0

94
5

93
893

9

94
194

294
394

494
694

794
8

STONE BRIDGE LN
60' Public Access STONE BRIDGE LN

N
O R T H

0 20'10'

1"=20'

Fi
na

l S
ite

 P
la

n

20
-0

10
8

Ko
Za

k'
s 

La
ke

to
w

n 
G

ril
l

Sm
ith

vi
lle

, C
la

y 
C

ou
nt

y,
 M

is
so

ur
i

C04
 J

un
 2

8 
, 2

02
1-

3:
00

pm
Z:

\R
IC

 D
es

ig
n\

20
20

\2
0-

01
08

\D
w

g\
Sh

ee
ts

\P
SP

\2
0-

01
08

 P
SG

R
AD

01
.d

w
g

N
O

.
BY

D
AT

E
R

EV
IS

IO
N

Q
D

Sheet

18
15

 M
cG

ee
 S

tr
ee

t,
 S

ui
te

. 
2
0
0

8
16

.8
0
0
.0

9
5
0

K
a
ns

a
s 

C
it
y,

 M
is
so

ur
i 
6
4
10

8
w
w
w
.r

ic
-c

on
su

lt
.c

om

M
O

 C
er

tif
ic

at
e 

of
 A

ut
ho

rit
y:

E-
20

10
03

36
30

PN
C

06
/2

9/
20

21
M

ES
1

O
R

IG
IN

AL
 S

U
BM

IS
SI

O
N

G
ra

di
ng

 P
la

n

Proposed Building
FFE: 946.50

TW: 944.75
BW: 944.42 TW: 944.98

BW: 936.03 TW: 930.65
BW: 930.39

TW: 952.07
BW: 948.46

TW: 950.29
BW: 945.21

TW: 948.50
BW: 944.92

BM "1000"

Control Point 65

Control Point 39

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
CO

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
CO

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
S



SSSS

UG
P

UG
P

UG
P

UG
P

G
AS

G
AS

G
AS

G
AS

TE
LE

TE
LE

TE
LE

TE
LE

W
/L

W
/L

W/LW/LW/LW/LW/LW/LW/LW/LW/LW/L

UGP UGP UGP UGP UGP UGP

FIRE FIRE FIRE FIRE FIRE FIRE FIRE FIRE FIRE FIRE FIRE FIRE FIRE FIRE

FI
R

E
FI

R
E

FI
R

E

ST

ST

ST

ST

ST ST ST ST ST ST ST ST ST ST ST ST ST ST ST ST ST

ST
ST

ST
ST

ST
ST

ST
ST

ST
ST

ST
ST

ST
ST

ST
ST

ST

ST

trash

grease

Drive thru window

ST ST ST ST ST

ST

ST

ST ST
ST

ST
ST

ST
ST

ST

ST

N
O R T H

0 20'10'

1"=20'

Fi
na

l S
ite

 P
la

n

20
-0

10
8

Ko
Za

k'
s 

La
ke

to
w

n 
G

ril
l

Sm
ith

vi
lle

, C
la

y 
C

ou
nt

y,
 M

is
so

ur
i

C05
 J

un
 2

8 
, 2

02
1-

3:
01

pm
Z:

\R
IC

 D
es

ig
n\

20
20

\2
0-

01
08

\D
w

g\
Sh

ee
ts

\P
SP

\2
0-

01
08

 P
SU

TL
01

.d
w

g

N
O

.
BY

D
AT

E
R

EV
IS

IO
N

Q
D

Sheet

18
15

 M
cG

ee
 S

tr
ee

t,
 S

ui
te

. 
2
0
0

8
16

.8
0
0
.0

9
5
0

K
a
ns

a
s 

C
it
y,

 M
is
so

ur
i 
6
4
10

8
w
w
w
.r

ic
-c

on
su

lt
.c

om

M
O

 C
er

tif
ic

at
e 

of
 A

ut
ho

rit
y:

E-
20

10
03

36
30

PN
C

06
/2

9/
20

21
M

ES
1

O
R

IG
IN

AL
 S

U
BM

IS
SI

O
N

U
til

ity
 P

la
n

Proposed Grease InterceptorProposed Sanitary

Proposed Hydrant

Proposed Gas Service

Proposed Water Line

Proposed Fire Line

Existing Sanitary

Existing Force Main

Existing Gas Line

Stone Bridge Lane

Proposed Underground Power

Proposed Transformer

Proposed 6,000 SF Building
FFE: 946.50

Proposed Drain Basin
w/ Curb Inlet

Proposed Drain Basin
w/ Curb Inlet

Proposed Curb Inlet

Proposed Curb Inlet

Proposed Drain Basin
w/ Curb Inlet

Storm to discharge into detention
basin designed and graded by
others

BM "1000"

Control Point 65

Control Point 39

Proposed Communication Service

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
CO

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
S



93594
094

5

950

934

936

93793
8

93
9

94
1

94
2

94
3

94
4

946

947

948

949

951

930

93
5

940

94
5

95
0

929

931931

93
193
293

393
493

693
7

93
8

93
9

94194
2

94
394

4

94
6

94
7

948

94
9

95
1

952

95
3

94
0

94
5

93
893

9

94
194

294
394

494
694

794
8

SSSS

UG
P

UG
P

UG
P

UG
P

G
AS

G
AS

G
AS

G
AS

TE
LE

TE
LE

TE
LE

TE
LE

W
/L

W
/L

W/LW/LW/LW/LW/LW/LW/L

UGP UGP

FIRE FIRE FIRE FIRE FIRE FIRE FIRE FIRE FIRE FIRE

FI
R

E
FI

R
E

FI
R

E

ST

ST

ST

ST

ST ST ST ST ST ST ST ST ST ST ST ST ST ST ST ST ST

ST
ST

ST
ST

ST
ST

ST
ST

ST
ST

ST
ST

ST
ST

ST
ST

ST

ST

trash

grease

Drive thru window

ST ST ST ST ST

ST

ST

ST ST
ST

ST
ST

ST
ST

ST

ST

4
MS26

IV

8
AM

14
MS4

4
IV

8
AM

4
IV

JS
8

MX2
1

QB
1

QB
1

1
CK2

MX2
2

GBP2
2

JG
6 MS4

6
AM
6 MS4

4

JG
6

MS2
6

AM
6

MS4
4

JG
6 MS2

6

JG
6

AM
6

MS4
6

AM
14

3
NSW

2
MX2

CC
1 1

CC

5
JS 7

IV
IV
7

JS
4

6
MS2

9
AM

JS
6

7
IV

CS
10

JB4
6

5
IV

AM
7

JS
4

7
IV

CK2
1

4
QB

2
CK2

1
CK2

4
GBP2

4
MS2MS4

22

5
JG

NSW
2

CS
9

MS4
15

JS
2

CAK
11

WF2
22

MS2
9 2

JS

12
MS4

IV
4

9
JGIV

3

JB4
6

7
MS4

CS
3

3
CS

N
O R T H

0 20'10'

1"=20'

Fi
na

l D
ev

el
op

m
en

t P
la

n

20
-0

10
8

Ko
Za

k'
s 

La
ke

to
w

n 
G

ril
l

Sm
ith

vi
lle

, C
la

y 
C

ou
nt

y,
 M

is
so

ur
i

L01
 J

un
 2

8 
, 2

02
1-

3:
10

pm
Z:

\R
IC

 D
es

ig
n\

20
20

\2
0-

01
08

\D
w

g\
Sh

ee
ts

\F
D

P\
20

-0
10

8 
LN

D
FD

P.
dw

g

N
O

.
BY

D
AT

E
R

EV
IS

IO
N

Q
D

Sheet

M
is
so

ur
i 
C
er

ti
fi
ca

te
 o

f 
A
ut

ho
ri
ty

 N
o.

 2
0
10

0
3
3
6
3
0

5
0
15

 N
W

 C
a
na

l 
S
tr

ee
t,

 S
ui
te

 1
0
0
 

8
16

.8
0
0
.0

9
5
0

R
iv
er

si
de

, 
M
is
so

ur
i 
6
4
15

0
w
w
w
.r

ic
-c

on
su

lt
.c

om
AL

06
/2

8/
20

21
AG

1
O

R
IG

IN
AL

 S
U

BM
IS

SI
O

N

La
nd

sc
ap

e 
Pl

an

8" MIN.
HARDWOOD MULCH
AS SPECIFIED

LANDSCAPING; RE:
PLAN & DETAILS

VARIES

8"

V-CUT NATURAL EDGING
WITH MULCH BACKFILL

LIMIT OF PLANT BED
AS SHOWN IN PLAN

LAWN AREA; RE:
SPECIFICATIONS

NOTES:
1. CONTRACTOR SHALL LOCATE AND MARK ALL PLANTBED

LOCATIONS PRIOR TO EXCAVATING FOR FINAL APPROVAL BY
OWNER OR LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT.

2. TRANSITION TO MULCH CONTAINMENT DETAIL AT ALL
LOCATIONS ADJACENT TO CURBS & SIDEWALKS. RE: DETAIL,
THIS SHEET.

3. CONTRACTOR TO VERIFY ALL UTILITY LOCATIONS PRIOR TO
TRENCHING OR LANDSCAPE INSTALLATION.

V-CUT NATURAL EDGE DETAIL - NTS

Free StandingAgainst Wall Clustered BoxesFree Standing 
Transformer

TYPICAL UTILITY BOX SCREENING DETAILS - NTS

Small Box

UTILITY BOXES SHALL BE CLUSTERED AS MUCH AS POSSIBLE

2 x
CONTAINER

DIA.

PRUNE OUT ANY DEAD OR BROKEN
BRANCHES.  CUT ANY GIRDLING ROOTS
OFF CLOSE TO THE CROWN.  PRY LONG
ROOTS OUT TO DIRECT INTO NEW SOIL

INSTALL 3" OF HARDWOOD
MULCH THROUGHOUT PLANTING
BED.  LEAVE A 6" BARE CIRCLE
AT BASE OF PLANTPLACE SHRUB SO CROWN IS AT SOIL LEVEL

FILL PLANTING HOLE WITH AMENDED
SOIL MIX ACCORDING TO
SPECIFICATIONS.  CONSTRUCT RING
AROUND PLANTED SHRUB TO FORM
SAUCER

SCARIFY PIT
BOTTOM
(MIN. 6")

NOTES:
1. REFER TO SPECIFICATIONS FOR TOPSOIL BACKFILL MIX.
2. CONTRACTOR TO WATER THOROUGHLY AFTER PLANTING
3. INSTALLATION TO BE IN ACCORDANCE WITH PLANTING SPECIFICATIONS
4. WHERE ADJACENT TO CURB, MAINTAIN THE MINIMUM OFFSET SHOWN.  FOR SHRUBS

LARGER THAN 4' MATURE DIAMETER, PROVIDE A GREATER OFFSET EQUAL TO 1/2 OF THE
MATURE DIAMETER MINIMUM.

6"

SECTION

SHRUB PLANTING DETAIL - NTS

PROVIDE MULCH
CONTAINMENT EDGE

ADJACENT TO HARDSCAPE;
RE: DETAIL

4' MIN.

CURB, WHERE APPLICABLE;
MAINTAIN A MINIMUM OF 4'
TO CENTER OF ROOTBALL

FROM BACK OF CURB

3 x ROOT BALL DIA.

PRUNE OUT ANY DEAD OR BROKEN BRANCHES
AND REMOVE DEBRIS FROM SITE.

SECURE TREE TO STAKES WITH STRAPS (RE: SPECS).
STRAPS SHALL BE LOOSE ENOUGH TO ALLOW SOME
MOVEMENT OF THE TRUNK WITH THE WIND

MIN. 6' LONG STEEL STAKES SECURED
INTO UNDISTURBED SOIL.  PLACE NORTH
AND SOUTH OF TREE.

SET TREE WITH TOP OF ROOT BALL FLUSH WITH GRADE.
TRUNK FLARE MUST BE VISIBLE AT THE TOP OF ROOT
BALL.  REMOVE EXCESS SOIL TO TOP OF LATERAL ROOTS.

3" MULCH PER SPECIFICATIONS.  DO NOT PLACE ON
TRUNK OR TRUNK FLARE.  BERM AT OUTER EDGES OF
RING TO CREATE A SAUCER FORM.

REMOVE TWINE AND CAGE FROM ROOT
BALL AND TRUNK.  PEEL AND REMOVE
BURLAP FROM TO 1/3 OF THE ROOT BALL.

PLANTING HOLE SHALL BE AT LEAST 3 TIMES
WIDER THAN THE SPREAD OF ITS ROOTS,
BUT NO DEEPER.  PLACE ROOT BALL ON
UNDISTURBED SOIL WITH ROOT FLARE EVEN
WITH OR 1" ABOVE GRADE.  SCARIFY SIDES
AND BOTTOM OF PIT.
AMEND SOIL ACCORDING TO SPECIFICATIONS.

NOTES:
1. TREES THAT DO NOT MEET THE SIZE REQUIREMENT WILL BE REJECTED
2. TREES SHALL BE INSPECTED BY OWNERS REPRESENTATIVE PRIOR TO

INSTALLATION.

SECTION

DECIDUOUS TREE PLANTING DETAIL - NTS

Proposed Building
Re: Arch

Ex. Sanitary
Force Main

Parking
Re: Civil

Ex. Sanitary
Line

Proposed Gas
Service Line

Ex. Gas LineEx. Underground
Telephone Lines

Ex. Water
Line

Stone Bridge Lane

Proposed Sidewalk

Proposed Telephone
Service Line

Proposed Sanitary
Service Line

Proposed
Underground Power
Service Line

ORNAMENTAL BOTANICAL / COMMON NAME CONT CAL QTY
CC Cercis canadensis `Forest Pansy` TM / Forest Pansy Redbud B&B 2" Cal. 2

CK2 Cornus kousa / Kousa Dogwood B&B 2" Cal. 5

MX2 Malus x `Spring Snow` / Spring Snow Crab Apple B&B 2" Cal. 5

DECIDUOUS TREES BOTANICAL / COMMON NAME CONT CAL QTY
GBP2 Ginkgo biloba `Princeton Sentry` / Princeton Sentry Ginkgo B&B 2.5" Cal. 6

NSW Nyssa sylvatica `Wildfire` / Black Gum B&B 2.5" Cal. 5

QB Quercus bicolor / Swamp White Oak B&B 2.5" Cal. 6

SHRUBS BOTANICAL / COMMON NAME CONT . QTY
AM Aronia melanocarpa `Morton` TM / Iroquis Beauty Black Chokeberry 5 Gal. 64

CAK Calamagrostis x acutiflora `Karl Foerster` / Feather Reed Grass 3 Gal. 11

CS Cornus stolonifera `Arctic Fire` / Arctic Fire Dogwood 5 Gal. 25

IV Itea virginica `Henry`s Garnet` / Henry`s Garnet Sweetspire 5 Gal. 54

JG Juniperus chinensis `Gold Lace` / Gold Lace Juniper 5 Gal. 38

JS Juniperus chinensis `Sea Green` / Sea Green Juniper 5 Gal. 31

JB4 Juniperus squamata `Blue Star` / Blue Star Juniper 5 Gal. 12

MS2 Miscanthus sinensis `Gracillimus` / Maiden Grass 3 Gal. 35

MS4 Miscanthus sinensis `Morning Light` / Eulalia Grass 3 Gal. 90

WF2 Weigela florida `My Monet` / My Monet Weigela 3 Gal. 22

GROUND COVERS BOTANICAL / COMMON NAME CONT

Turfgrass Sod Fescue Mix; RE: Notes / Fescue Sod SOD 8,047 sf

PLANT SCHEDULE

V-Cut Edging - TYP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S



 

This Staff Report has been revised to reflect negotiated changes to the 
adjacent street improvements in accordance with the Planning Commission 
recommendation at the June meeting.   

In March of 2020, the Herzog Foundation came forward with a proposed 
new subdivision and rezoning request on the north 8 acres of the Catholic 
Church parcel.  The purpose of that proposal was to allow the design and 
construction of an approximately 17,000 square foot national headquarters 
and office complex.  The original concept was to have an entrance 
approximately 275’ east of 169.  That proposal triggered certain off-site 
street improvements along 188th St. from 169 to Main St., subject to the 
actual site plan submitted.   That zoning and plat were approved in the 
City’s first Zoom Planning Commission meeting.   
In September, the foundation came forward with the actual site plan 
documents for the foundation.  In those documents, in addition to the 
foundation headquarters, the foundation indicated that they had future 
plans to put some form of cabins on the property for use of out-of-town 
guests.  At that time, there was not enough information for city staff to 
evaluate the proposal, so it was not included in the Site Plan approval from 
September of 2020. 
Recently, the foundation submitted plans for the development of the 
cabins.  The review of the plans as submitted meet the design and layout 
standards of the Site plan ordinances.  The most significant point of 
discussion has been the development of the site significantly to the east of 
the headquarters building in what was originally a large, wooded area.  
Now that the site plan is expanding, and more particularly nearly to the 
Main St. intersection, staff originally required the remainder of the adjacent 

 

 
  

Date: July 6, 2021 

Prepared By: Jack Hendrix 

Subject: Herzog Foundation Cabins 

STAFF REPORT 



street improvements.  The applicant agreed to perform chip and seal 
overcoat on the adjacent portion of Main St. 

At the June meeting, the commission postponed the vote on the site plan 
until July, with the request that the city staff and applicant try to come to 
an agreement on the adjacent infrastructure improvements.  Following that 
work, staff brings forward an agreed to set of improvements, identified as 
conditions for the Planning Commission to place on the recommendation of 
approval.  Staff also formally waived any traffic study update requirements 
contained in the site plan ordinance given the agreement and the relatively 
small number of potential vehicles. 

Staff recommends approval of the Site Plan with the following conditions 
for the infrastructure improvements of Main St.: 

1.  Applicant shall construct a 5’ Sidewalk installed to city standards 
located on city ROW within 1’ of property line. 

2. Applicant shall perform chip and seal over the entire width of N. Main 
from the end of 188th St. construction performed as a part of the 
original development plan, south to the property line of the subject 
property for a distance not to exceed 314.40 feet. 

 

 

 


	Agenda 7-13-21 NEEDS LINDA'S INPUT
	Planning Commission 6-8-21
	Kozak's Staff Report
	Kozak's Laketown Grill - Planning and Zoning - 28june21
	Sheets: A1.1 - First Floor Plan
	Sheets: A1.2 - Second Floor Plan
	Sheets: A2.0 - Exterior Elevations
	Sheets: A2.1 - Exterior Elevations
	20-0108 FSP.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	C02 Existing Conditions
	C03 General Layout
	C04 Grading Plan
	C05 Utility Plan


	Kozak's Laketown Grill - P&Z Cover.pdf
	Sheets: Y - Unnamed


	Herzog Cabins Staff Report

